
 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://www.box.net/shared/60q5e63h4x and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 1 of 14 

 
CITY OF WEST LAFAYETTE 

COMMON COUNCIL 
PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES 

OCTOBER 2, 2008 
 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of West Lafayette, Indiana, met in Council Chambers at City 
Hall on October 2, 2008, at the hour of 4:30 p.m. 
 
Mayor Dennis called the meeting to order and presided. 
 
Present: Bunder, Burch, Hunt, Roales, Thomas, and Truitt. 
 
Absent: Keen. 
 
Also present were City Attorney Burns, Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes, City Engineer Buck,         
Police Captain Leroux, Street Commissioner Downey, Fire Chief Drew, Human Resources 
Director Foster, WWTU Director Henderson, Parks Superintendent Payne, and Director of 
Development Poole. 
 
Mr. Jim Treat of O.W. Krohn & Associates, LLP addressed the Council on the Annexation 
Appeal and provided a handout titled “City of West Lafayette North Annexation Appeal, October 
2, 2008.” 

  
Mr. Treat said I’m going to be talking from this handout in your packet, just so we’re all on the 
same page.  I’m sure you all recall, I was here about two months ago, giving you some 
background material on the projected costs of serving the north annexation area, and talking 
about various scenarios that we might use to fund those costs.  In particular, how annexation 
appeals work, how the new law allows us to potentially phase those costs in in special 
adjustments to the property tax levy, to be able to do that.  All those things are obviously an 
integral part of your overall budget.  Those costs have to be included in the budget.  The related 
appeals and all those things have to be a part of the budget process, so we need to make sure 
we keep in the mix here, as you’re getting closer and closer to taking some steps to adopt a 
new budget.  I have basically the same handouts, for the most part, that I went over with you 
two months ago.  There’ve been a few key changes that have changed the numbers somewhat 
and the strategy somewhat, and so— 
 
Mayor Dennis said everybody does have a copy of those handouts? 
 
Mr. Treat said yes, they got them when they came in. 
 
Mayor Dennis said okay. 
 
Mr. Treat said what I want to do is flip through each page, just briefly, to just make sure that 
we’re all remembering the concepts and the issues that we covered the last time.  And then 
highlight those changes for you and then talk a little bit about where we go from here and 
correlate that with the overall budget process.  With that being said, on the first page, which was 
the recap of costs for the annexation, our point here was really to just summarize what you’ve 

 
Subject to approval at the November 3, 2008, Common Council Meeting.  

Internet
Text Box
                          Approved at the November 3, 2008, Common Council Meeting.



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 2 of 14 

 

already spent projected through the end of ’08, from 2007 and ’08, primarily for fire and police 
services in salaries, benefits, and equipment costs and such.  The point is here you’ve already 
committed about $800,000 and spent about $800,000 of City reserves to fund these operations 
to provide equivalent services to the annexed area.  In addition to that, you’ve got over $1 
million in TIF funds that have been spent on capital, to set up that temporary fire station, furnish 
it, equip it, and all that.  And that $800,000 is not something you’re going to get back either.  
You’re not going to be able to recoup that.  When we do these appeals, like everything else in 
the budget, it’s a forward-looking basis.  We’re looking what’s projected and future requirements 
and how are we going to fund those.  There’s really not a mechanism, unfortunately, to go back 
and recover.  So I really want to stress that point at the beginning.  Flipping to page 2—and 
please interrupt me, if you have questions, but I’ll keep moving, so we can get through it quickly 
also, if that’s everybody’s wish.  One of the important things to look at—and this table really 
hasn’t changed, but I just want to make a couple important points on it—is there’s obviously 
been some dramatic changes in the development, the market, and the growth recently.  These 
might be two months old, they might be a little off, obviously.  But when the fiscal plan was put 
together for this area in 2005, they had some pretty aggressive assumptions, and I’m talking in 
terms of home starts and growth and what kind of assessed value and related tax revenues that 
was going to generate.  We took another look at that.  We started with certified assessed value 
of about $13.7 million for that area, and really took a hard look, got some new projections from 
the folks here at the City, and really scaled those back.  You can see, in the middle there where 
you’ve got “Growth Assumptions” and “Number of Homes,” it was like 170 homes a year in the 
original plan, and we’re going to get 30 or 40 a year in the next couple years.  That would be 
great.  But, unfortunately, that’s way below what was projected, and if you look just through 
2020 when we kind of level it off to 50 a year, this is less than 600 homes over this long time 
period.  The fiscal plan counted on a total of 2,500 units coming in to that area, and the 
difference in the assessed value—again, we’re just doing estimates here—but if we got these 
600 units, that would be about $91 million in potential assessed value, and that’s about 25% of 
the $360 million in assessed value that was projected to support this.  What that means, bottom 
line, is that the property tax generated from $90 million in new assessed value—let’s say 
roughly $700,000 or $800,000.  But we’re looking at costs of $1.2 million in the near term, and 
unless things really turn around—and they could in three or four or five years, they might—but 
right now, we’ve got the issue to deal with these costs now. And we really don’t have that same 
perspective on what kind of funds might be coming in.  It’s just not realistic.  So that’s what this 
is telling us.  The key thing we really want to spend the time on is the next page, and that is the 
updated summary of how this annexation appeal might work.  Now, again, what we’re going to 
be doing going forward from today is focusing on what’s going to be in the 2009 budget and 
what we would ask for in regard to that budget, but we’re showing you, still, kind of a long-range 
view of how this might work, since we now have that option of doing it in more than one step.  
The main thing that’s changed since last time – we haven’t really changed the costs in any 
substantive way in total, they were about $1.2 million, $1.3 million and they still are, the same 
areas that we talked about the last time—what’s changed is our hope was to use Rainy Day 
Funds on hand to fund some of these costs, at least for the next couple of years, all or a portion 
of them, and then phase in the appeals and the increases in the levy to fund the costs, after 
there’s been hopefully a little more growth and just spread it out a little bit more.  But, 
unfortunately, because of the developments with regard to the Rainy Day Funds that are 
composed of pension relief funds, we really can’t assume that we can have all those Rainy Day 
Funds available to use for general operating costs.  I’m sure you won’t remember this, but we 
had about the same amount—about $550,000—for the three police, three fire, and the City 
services and Street Department costs.  Those numbers have not changed from our last 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 3 of 14 

 

presentation on 2009 to you all.  But what’s changed is we thought we’d use about $300,000 or 
$320,000, something like that, in Rainy Day Funds and then have a very modest appeal, about 
$131,000—you might remember that number—in the first year.  So kind of kick it in with a little 
lower tax impact and then scale it up from there over the next three years.  Unfortunately, it 
doesn’t look like we’re going to have that ability to do that.  The administration has already gone 
through and done some pretty significant budget reductions, and even with those reductions, we 
really can’t fund these costs that are in the budget and have to be covered.  With that, and the 
fact that we don’t have a lot of remaining available Rainy Day monies to use, there really isn’t 
another viable option to do that.  So what this leaves us with then is, potentially we’d be asking 
for around $500,000 for 2009.  Looking forward in 2010, 2011, and 2012, we would be looking 
at a much smaller, let’s say, appeal of about $150,000 in 2010, because we should start getting 
some additional income tax money, local income tax money; and about $330,000 in 2011, to 
fund what you see at the top, the three firemen coming in 2010 and 2011.  That was a little bit of 
a change, kind of another shift in this scenario view from the last time.  We thought we might 
push out those last three firemen to 2012, and that still may be happening, but we pulled them 
in to 2011 this time, and what that did for us was that, in 2012, our cost shortfall—and these are 
all incremental, building new costs every year, that’s how this schedule works—it’s just 
hypothetically one new police officer, again, if that’s decided to be done that year.  And by that 
time, we should have enough additional income tax, because of these increases in your levy, 
that we could fund that and not have an appeal at all in the fourth year.  So there is a little 
benefit there, where we’ve got more loaded up front, but we’ve got less in the back end.  The 
amount that we’re showing overall is property tax levy from appeal of $939,000, about $60,000 
less that what we had in the last one, because if we fund it earlier, the costs haven’t inflated as 
much, so they’re a little less.  And we’re also showing a little bit more income tax revenue than 
we did before, so, again, the appeal’s a little less, the total tax estimate—and it’s really a rough 
estimate—is down about $0.01 from where we were before.  But, you know, it’s still potentially 
$0.04 or more in next year’s levy, and that’s just based upon real rough estimates of what the 
combined assessed value for the City might be.  If it would be somewhere in that range of 
$0.048 that you’re seeing down there at the bottom of the page. For a $200,000 home, that 
would potentially be about $48 a year or $4 a month additional in property tax-related impact.  
So that kind of puts it all in context.  I think those were the key things that we wanted to cover on 
this schedule.  Any questions on this one, before I move on? 
 
Councilor Roales said do you have an electronic copy of this? 
 
Mr. Treat said yes. 
 
Councilor Roales said okay.  Is that in our box?  I didn’t see it. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said this came with Mr. Treat today, so he would have to provide us 
with one. 
 
Councilor Roales said could you send us an electronic copy of this? 
 
Mr. Treat said absolutely. 
 
Councilor Roales said all right.  Thank you. 
 
Councilor Hunt said Mr. Treat, can I ask a question? 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 4 of 14 

 

 
Mr. Treat said yes. 
 
Councilor Hunt said you said $0.04, and is that based on $100,000, $100?  I don’t know what 
that’s based on.  $0.04 per—? 
 
Mr. Treat said $0.04 per $100 of assessed value.  Just like any additional incremental tax rate. 
 
Councilor Hunt said that’s what I thought, but I wanted to make sure. 
 
Mr. Treat said yes.  The next page, this schedule has not really changed in any significant way 
from the last time.  It’s a comparison of the fiscal plan to this latest appeal analysis and the new 
costs that are involved in that.  It’s an important thing that DLGF looks at in evaluating these 
requests and saying, “Do they make sense?  If you only thought you’d have this amount in 
costs, when you did the annexation, how come you’re coming back and asking for this?”  So it is 
an important thing that will be helping you address with DLGF.  And so we’ve prepared these 
kinds of things, and you can see here, in gross costs, there’s not a big difference, surprisingly.  
We’ve done some things to shift things around, but we’ve —$1.1 million, it’s only maybe 
$150,000 difference between what was projected several years ago and what we’re trying to 
work with now, so we’re not really asking for a whole lot more than what was expected.  The big 
difference is that the plan originally was that this would occur over 15 years, and that’s really not 
proving to be the case now, that isn’t something that we can work that way.  And so we’re 
compressing the same amount of costs or a little bit more, over maybe three to five years.  So 
that is a big change, and that is kind of the point of this schedule.  The chart, you saw this chart 
before.  Again, we’ve had to update everything, to try to be as realistic and as conservative as 
we can be.  We’ve revised the income tax projections, and this chart kind of highlights what 
we’ve done versus what was in the fiscal plan that showed a lot of continued growth in those 
distributions of Local Option Income Tax that I don’t think we can count on.  If they happen, that 
would be great, but we’re not counting on that much in making this work.  We’ve really scaled 
those back, and we just highlighted that on this schedule.  Those really hit the key highlights of 
changes since the last presentation.  Again, going away from having reserves or other capacity 
to fund this, needing to really do a lot more in the first year to fund the costs that you’ve already 
incurred, at least the positions that you’ve already got in place and the obligations you’ve got 
that are going forward in your budget.  So what we do in this process going forward, and we do 
this on all the annexation appeals that we do, the next step will be the approval step. As far as 
an appeal is concerned, it is simply a resolution from the Council.  And we will draft and provide 
that Council resolution for you all.  It will be in your packets on the 23rd.  You won’t actually take 
action on it until you do your budget adoption. There’s a couple meetings in between that.  
You’ve got your public hearing on November 3, and your budget adoption scheduled for the 
17th.  That’s when you’ll really take action on it, but this resolution simply says, “We need to 
provide these services to this area.  We have no other way of funding it.”  It gives an 
approximate amount and a rough description of the types of services.  The Council then 
authorizes us to do this detailed filing.  There’s basically a packet of forms that reiterates this 
information and answers some other questions for DLGF.  This is really the legal authorization 
or the technical authorization to go ahead and do that, and it’s filed on the top of the package 
when we go forward.  Another key part of this that we like to do is get involved in reviewing the 
budget publications, and you have to publish your budget—or at least that summary—with the 
total appropriations, the maximum levies for next year, the current levies for this year.  You also 
have to break out the appeal amount on that publication, and we get involved in reviewing 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 5 of 14 

 

publications in advance, and making sure that everything’s included and everything’s what you 
have intended, including the appeal.  And then, like I said, we’d be doing that resolution on the 
17th, and then we’ll, at the same time, be working on all this filing detail and be ready.  That gets 
filed on the 20th of November to DLGF, about a day before your actual budget, when it’s 
adopted, is filed with the County.  And then, after that, then there’s a formal hearing, and who 
knows when it will be, because I suspect that DLGF will probably be inundated with appeal 
requests, once this extended budget deadline is over.  So it may not even be in December.  
Typically, they would do them in October, November, and, if there’s any left, it may even be 
after the first of the year.  But at any rate, we’ll assist representatives of the City to go down to 
DLGF and do testimony with the Local Tax Control Board, to present our case and convince 
them that you really need this.  That doesn’t mean that they have to say yes either, but— 
 
Mayor Dennis said that’s a point that I want to stress.  This is just our opportunity to present our 
case to DLGF.  It’s somewhat like a trial, I guess, or a hearing.  A decision is made based upon 
the case that we present, because it’s not a done deal until they say it’s a done deal. 
 
Mr. Treat said yes.  And that group, the Local Tax Control Board, actually makes a non-binding 
recommendation to the Commissioner Cheryl Musgrave, and she makes the final decision, 
either signs it or doesn’t or requires additional hearings.  I’ve been through all gyrations of that, 
and you just kind of have to be diligent and stick with it until you get what you need. 
 
Mayor Dennis said what’s the timeline generally on when we complete our testimony in front of 
DLGF? 
 
Mr. Treat said they take a vote right then.  The Local Tax Control Board that makes the 
recommendation to the Commissioners takes a vote immediately.  Now, sometimes if they’re 
just totally overwhelmed, or not quite sure how to deal with your request, or they don’t want to 
turn you down, but they’re just not confident enough yet to go forward with it, for whatever 
reason, they may table it or ask you to come back in two weeks to the next hearing or 
something like that.  So those are the kind of options.  They may do that, but, absent that, they’ll 
make a recommendation and take a vote right then. 
 
Mayor Dennis said so we’ll know generally as soon as— 
 
Mr. Treat said generally you’ll know right then whether it’s going to go forward or not.  And it 
used to be that, if you got a majority vote, it was done.  But what we’ve found in this last year 
with the changes in administration down in DLGF and approach, there’s no guarantee that that 
positive recommendation is just going to automatically translate to an approval by the 
Commissioner.  Which just means there are some more steps that we all need to do to make it 
happen.  Again, that’s what we stay involved in, and hopefully that will occur—well, it all has to 
occur before the budget gets approved by DLGF and issued next year.  But that’s basically the 
process.   
 
Councilor Roales said what does this whole process cost? 
 
Mr. Treat said I don’t have a breakout on the cost for you.  I mean, there’s legal time involved, 
there’s the time of your folks to go down there.  I mean, I can get back to you on something on 
that, if you’d like me to. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 6 of 14 

 

Councilor Roales said sure. 
 
Mr. Treat said because we’ve been involved in this and a lot of other assistance as well, not just 
related to this.  But I can give you an estimate of that.  I’d rather think about it and kind of go 
back and do it—I’d be glad to do that. 
 
Councilor Roales said okay. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said we generally pay for hourly services, rather than a flat rate.   
 
Councilor Roales said yes, I was just looking for a ballpark— 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said so hopefully it will go smoothly and quickly.   
 
Councilor Roales said yes, I mean, obviously there’s unforeseen— 
 
Mr. Treat said exactly. 
 
Mayor Dennis said one-shot chance. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said yes, one visit. 
 
Mr. Treat said any other questions? 
 
Mayor Dennis said thank you, Jim [Mr. Treat]. 
 
Mr. Treat said you’re welcome. 
 
AGENDA REVIEW 
Mayor Dennis said back on task, under Public Relations, the West Lafayette Beautification 
Award. 
 
Councilor Hunt said I believe Councilor Roales is going to present that.  It will be to Ann 
Landgrebe who lives on Western Drive. 
 
Mayor Dennis said neat. 
 
Councilor Roales said do you know her? 
 
Mayor Dennis said what’s the name?  I couldn’t hear. 
 
Councilor Hunt said Ann Landgrebe.  I think Randy [Councilor Truitt] might have— 
 
Councilor Truitt said I went to school with— 
 
Councilor Hunt said with the daughter.  She was on the school board.  Not the daughter, but 
Ann Landgrebe was on the school board. 
 
Mayor Dennis said okay, great.  And, Paul [Councilor Roales], you’ll take care of that? 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 7 of 14 

 

 
Councilor Roales said sure. 
  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
Ordinance No. 22-08 An Ordinance Amending The Procedures And Composition Of The City Of 
West Lafayette Traffic Commission (Filed by the City Attorney) 
 
Mayor Dennis said this was filed by just about everybody and their relatives.   
 
Councilor Roales said before we start discussion on this, would it be possible, Judy [Clerk-
Treasurer Rhodes], I mean, would we need to amend City Code to have, like, “- Amendment 
Number” after the ordinance number, or could we just do that informally through your office?  
Could you coordinate that, if we agreed informally to do that? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said if we have some kind of system for numbering Amendment 1, 2, 3, 
4, that would be certainly welcome.  The previous City Attorney did not wish to use any kind of 
system like that.  I would look to the current City Attorney to assist us. 
 
City Attorney Burns said the color-coding seems to— 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said do you like the rainbow? 
 
[overtalking] 
 
City Attorney Burns said no, I think that would be fine.  You just number them sequentially, I 
think that would be fine. 
 
Councilor Roales said I mean, it would be okay for the Clerk to do that, okay? 
 
City Attorney Burns said absolutely. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I would certainly be very happy to.  Would anybody like a 
rainbow?  We certainly have them.  It’s an historical color-coded packet. 
 
[overtalking] 
 
Councilor Roales said the numbering will make our meeting less interesting. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said less colorful, anyway. 
 
Mayor Dennis said so in regards to this, there’s one portion, Paul [Councilor Roales], on yours. 
 
Councilor Roales said yes. 
 
Mayor Dennis said can we change that now? 
 
Councilor Roales said yes.  So I think we want to change the quorum number.  My quorum 
number says ten, I think we want to revise that to seven. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 8 of 14 

 

Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said on the aqua. 
 
Mayor Dennis said what color are we talking about? 
 
Councilor Roales said aqua. 
 
City Attorney Burns said so, is there a—  Mayor—? 
 
Mayor Dennis said so we’ll take off, under Section 41.09 (a), we’ll take off “Mayor” and then 
under Quorum, which is— 
 
City Attorney Burns said (e). 
 
Mayor Dennis said (e). 
 
City Attorney Burns said second sentence. 
 
Mayor Dennis said second sentence.  “…shall be ten”— 
 
Councilor Roales said should be seven. 
 
Mayor Dennis said so we’ll need a motion. 
 
Councilor Burch said Mr. Mayor, I’m not following on this.  So we’re looking at this copy? 
 
Mayor Dennis said on the aqua one.  If you look under Section 41.09, (a), that top paragraph— 
 
Councilor Burch said yes. 
 
Mayor Dennis said the first sentence— 
 
Councilor Burch said yes. 
 
Mayor Dennis said it says, “The traffic commission has been formed to serve without 
compensation consisting of the mayor…”  well, not the mayor.   
 
City Attorney Burns said delete “mayor.” 
 
Mayor Dennis said delete “mayor.”  Ann, would you like to say that? 
 
Councilor Hunt said yes, I would like to just wipe out the Mayor. 
 
Mayor Dennis said wipe out the Mayor.  And then down towards the bottom of the page, under 
(e), the first sentence, it says, “A quorum for the commission shall be ten voting members…”  
Change that to seven. 
 
Councilor Hunt said and you need a motion on that. 
 
Councilor Burch said well, what’s the purpose of these changes? 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 9 of 14 

 

 
Councilor Hunt said I’d like to address that, if I may.  Is that okay? 
 
Mayor Dennis said sure. 
 
Councilor Hunt said number one, as you know, we talked about the Mayor not being on this 
Commission at the Traffic Commission, and the Mayor agreed.  He has lots of representatives 
on there, many City employees.  It’s an advisory committee to the Mayor, and generally you’re 
not on the committee that advises you.  And the other thing, as far as the quorum, the Traffic 
Commission tells us that they have difficulty meeting a quorum.  I spoke with my reference for 
Robert’s Rules of Order, Dr. [Clerk-Treasurer] Rhodes, and she said a mere majority would be 
acceptable to Robert’s Rules of Order.  Is that right, Judy [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes]?  I mean, is 
that [unintelligible]? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said that would be a minimum, as recommended, the minimum number 
of members that can reliably be counted on to attend every meeting. 
 
Councilor Hunt said and so the Traffic Commission had expressed concern about always having 
a quorum.  In fact, they didn’t in September or October, I guess it was.  Pardon me, August.  
And so that was the basis of those changes.   
 
Councilor Burch said has this been presented to anyone on the Traffic Commission?  Has it 
been presented to Professor Sinha [Chair of the Traffic Commission] or to Mr. [City Engineer] 
Buck? 
 
Mayor Dennis said well, Mr. [City Engineer] Buck knows about it, and I believe Dr. Sinha is 
aware of it, too. 
 
Councilor Hunt said the “mayor” part was at the meeting. 
 
Mayor Dennis said that was at the Commission. 
 
Councilor Hunt said I don’t recall that we discussed the quorum there, except they said they had 
talked— 
 
[overtalking] 
 
Councilor Roales said I believe it was, yes. 
 
Councilor Hunt said was it discussed? 
 
Councilor Roales said we had a lot of discussion— 
 
Councilor Hunt said we had a lot of discussion. 
 
Councilor Roales said I believe it was. 
 
Mayor Dennis said we can’t conduct business if the quorum number gets too high, and he’s all 
in favor of that.   



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 10 of 14 

 

 
Councilor Burch said I understand. 
 
Mayor Dennis said so we can keep on moving down the road.   
 
Councilor Burch said yes. 
 
Mayor Dennis said further questions? 
 
Councilor Burch said I have another question.  Why do we, over the many colors of this, it’s 
been filed by the City Attorney, then by the Mayor, and then Mr. [Councilor] Roales.  Why?  Why 
is it not just submitted by—? 
 
Councilor Roales said I think what you see is a healthy public debate about the composition of 
the Traffic Commission.  I think this is what a healthy extended debate looks like.   
 
Councilor Burch said why is your name on this now, when you objected another time to the 
Mayor’s name not being on it? 
 
Councilor Roales said so I objected to the Mayor’s name not being on it, meaning he, as an 
elected official, is not presenting his viewpoint.  And so, I, as an elected official, am presenting 
my viewpoint with my name clearly on the top, labeling that. 
 
Mayor Dennis said I think it’s actually the City Attorney’s name that he objected to.   
 
Councilor Burch said yes, correction.  It was the City Attorney’s name that you first objected to.   
 
Mayor Dennis said yes.   
 
Councilor Burch said and now you want your name on this? 
 
Councilor Roales said it’s my amendment.  I made adaptations to it.  It would be inappropriate 
for me to put the City Attorney’s name on something I wrote—or helped to write. 
 
City Attorney Burns said that’s true. 
 
Ms. Jan Myers [1909 Indian Trail Drive] said can a citizen ask a question?  About the rainbow. 
 
Mayor Dennis said what we’re trying to do it just go ahead and get something that we can 
present at Council on Monday. 
 
Ms. Myers said yes, but I don’t understand how— it appears, from what I’m reading, that the 
aqua one went back to the white one.  I don’t have all the colors in between.  So I don’t even 
know why all this discussion has been going on.   
 
Councilor Hunt said well, there is a big change in this. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 11 of 14 

 

Councilor Roales said I mean, I think there’s been different viewpoints, and I think the aqua one 
is a combination of a viewpoint I presented and a viewpoint the Mayor presented, and, you 
know, we took the best pieces from each one and put them together in one piece. 
 
Ms. Myers said but the one that’s in the package over here, the white one, is exactly what you 
just changed it back to. 
 
Mayor Dennis said well, I think the white one still has me in there.  The corrections that we’re 
making actually might have been more correctly on the white one. 
 
Ms. Myers said they’re already on the white one. 
 
Councilor Roales said no, the white one has all the members appointed by the Mayor and the 
aqua one has five members appointed by the Council. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said that is not correct. 
 
Ms. Myers said I’ll read them to you, but I don’t follow that at all. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said on September 24, ’08, the ordinance which has—the white one 
which is dated “9/24/08 Mayor” was filed in our office, and that one was distributed in the 
Council packets. 
 
Councilor Hunt said that’s right.  It has the date hand-written on it. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said that was the one that was somewhat transmitted by Councilor 
Hunt, was aware of that. 
 
Councilor Roales said no, I mean, I think we’re talking about the content of that.  I think that’s 
the difference. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said and that white one does not have the Mayor as a member of the 
Traffic Commission.   
 
Councilor Roales said no, we’re talking about the Mayor making five appointments from the 
district levels is the difference. 
 
Mayor Dennis said and that was in there as well.  There were some subtle differences, Jan [Ms. 
Myers].   
 
Ms. Myers said okay. 
 
Mayor Dennis said further discussion from the Council?  Hearing none, I need a motion first for 
the two changes to Ordinance No. 22-08 (Amended) on copy submitted by Councilmember 
Roales. 
 
Councilor Roales said so moved. 
 
Councilor Truitt said second. 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 12 of 14 

 

 
The motion to amend Ordinance No. 22-08 to omit the Mayor as a member of the Traffic 
Commission and to decrease the number for a quorum to seven, passed by roll call vote, 6-0. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said do you intend to offer this amendment by substitution today, or do 
you wish to do that Monday?  It is not an amendment by substitution at this point. 
 
City Attorney Burns said yes, I would think you would do that on Monday. 
 
Mayor Dennis said just do it on Monday. 
 
City Attorney Burns said the final— 
 
Councilor Roales said we usually take official action on Monday. 
 
Councilor Hunt said is that clear to everyone in the audience, what we just did? 
 
Mayor Dennis said they have just white copies, I think.  They can’t follow this at all.  But it will be 
voted on Monday. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
Ordinance No. 27-08 An Ordinance Providing For Temporary Loans From A Fund Having 
Sufficient Balance To A Depleted Fund (WWTU to General Fund, Parks & Recreation Fund, 
Police Pension Fund, and Fire Pension Fund) (Prepared by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Mayor Dennis said any questions, concerns  that need to be addressed by Judy [Clerk-
Treasurer Rhodes]? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said some good news.  We’ve just received nearly $1 million in 
revenue from the Auditor, forwarding State PTRC and, hopefully, this will reduce our needs for 
temporary loans in the next month. 
 
Mayor Dennis said good stuff. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Ordinance No. 28-08 An Ordinance Setting The  2009 City Budget And Setting The 2009 Tax 
Levy On Property And Tax Rate (Prepared by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Mayor Dennis said I presume everybody got their—I know most of them got their books 
because I delivered them.  Any clarification or points of concern? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Ordinance No. 29-08 An Ordinance To Fix The Salaries Of Appointed Officers, Employees, And 
Members Of The Police And Fire Departments Of The City Of West Lafayette, Indiana, For The 
Year 2009 (Prepared by the Clerk-Treasurer) 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 13 of 14 

 

 
Mayor Dennis said everybody, I presume, is in receipt of those.  Anything we need to discuss 
now?   
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Ordinance No. 30-08 2009 Wastewater Treatment Utility Salary Schedule As Submitted By The 
Board Of Public Works And Safety For Approval By The Common Council Of The City Of West 
Lafayette, Indiana (Presented by the Board of Public Works and Safety) 
 
Mayor Dennis said questions, concerns, clarifications? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Ordinance No. 31-08 An Ordinance To Set The Salaries Of The Elected Officials, City Of West 
Lafayette, Indiana, For The Year 2009 (Prepared by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Councilor Roales said I just have one question on that.  Meeting Compensation, why is Section 
3 in [Ordinance No.] 31-08 instead of [Ordinance No.] 29-08, under Appointed Officials? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the compensation for an elected official who is the Council 
representative to the Area Plan Commission. 
 
Councilor Roales said okay, that makes sense.  All right. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Resolution No. 17-08 A Resolution Requesting The Transfer of Funds (Police, Fire) (Prepared 
by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Mayor Dennis said questions, concerns? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
COMMENTS: 
Councilor Hunt said I’d like to add one thing, the America in Bloom announcement of how we 
did is over the weekend in Cincinnati. 
 
Mayor Dennis said Bev [Redevelopment and Neighborhood Planner Shaw] is going to that. 
 
Councilor Hunt said I think it’s Cincinnati.  It might be Columbus.  One of those “C” cities. 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes, Cincinnati.  Is it Cincinnati, Chandler [Director of Development Poole]? 
 
Director of Development Poole said Columbus. 
 
Mayor Dennis said Columbus. 
 
Councilor Hunt said okay, Columbus.  I hope we win. 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, OCTOBER 2, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 14 of 14 

 

 
Mayor Dennis said so if we win, are we going to, like, have Pink Day? 
 
Councilor Hunt said you all have to wear your pink hats.  It was lots and lots of effort by many, 
many people, many citizens, many, many staff people, and it was the bringing together.  I think 
you’ve heard me rave about it before.  It was fun. 
 
Mayor Dennis said it was pretty cool. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business at this time, Mayor Dennis adjourned the meeting, the time 
being 5:10 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Judith C. Rhodes, Clerk-Treasurer 
Secretary of the Common Council 




